Answers to Industry Comments/Questions on the Wallops Institutional Consolidated Contract (WICC) II Final Request for Proposals dated 8/21/2012
Note:  Missing questions from this series are anticipated to be posted by 9/17/12.
416.  The PWS requires that the contractor develop and have working on the first day of the contract an Integrated Management System that integrates the existing WIIMS and government CMMS with the contractors business management system. According to the PWS, the existing WIIMS source files will be made available on day 1 of Phase-In. In order to accurately price and develop a phase-in schedule additional information on the software to be integrated is needed during the proposal preparation period. (Please make available, the following information in addition to just stating there are approximately 45 web applications and 290 data base tables.)

a.
Question: Please provide a comprehensive list of database tables (with field listing), input and outputs (including integration points and reports) for both WIIMS and Maximo?  Please define the interfaces/tie-points between the two (tables and fields within tables), the frequency of updates and the method for updates.

                          Answer: The current interfaces between WIIMS and Maximo are already established.  They will not require any modifications by the contractor during Phase-In; therefore, no additional information will be provided beyond what is already in the technical library located at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html.  Per SOW 1.1, the contractor must ensure that cost information for IDIQ tasks are updated daily.  During Phase-In, the contractor must implement their preferred methodology for providing material, labor, or other direct costs to WIIMS for IDIQ task orders on a daily basis.  Costs can be pulled from the contractor’s accounting system, pulled from Maximo (if input into Maximo by the contractor), or manually input into WIIMS.  Only if information is pulled from the contractor’s accounting system will the WIIMs require modifications to communicate with the contractor’s accounting system.  The modifications required to WIIMS would be very minor and the contractor awarded the WICC II would do them during phase-in.  Maximo cannot be modified by the WICC II contractor.

b.
Question: Please provide a complete list of screen shots of the WIIMS application.  Please identify which fields are shown on which screens.

                         Answer:  The only screen shots that will be provided are those in the industry day slides.  Those slides are available on NAIS at http://prod.nais.nasa.gov/cgi-bin/eps/sol.cgi?acqid=146923#Other%2006.  The existing WIIMS screens will not be modified by the contractor during Phase-In.  Per SOW 1.1, d, during Phase-In, the contractor only must implement their preferred methodology for providing material, labor, or other direct costs to WIIMS for IDIQ task orders on a daily basis.

c.
Question: Please define the expected interfaces and relationships between Wallops’ implementation of Maximo and the Contractor’s accounting system, to include the frequency of updates and the method for update.  Please detail how these updates will be timed/coordinated with the Maximo/WIIMS updates.

                         Answer: Requirements for the Maximo based CMMS labor hour and cost data are provided in SOW 3.2.1 (g) and 3.2.2 where it states that labor hours and material costs must be input into Maximo within 24 hours of work completion.  This must be manually input by the WICC II Contractor.  There is no direct link between the contractor’s accounting system and the Maximo based CMMS.  Per SOW 1.1, the Government requires daily cost updates (material, labor, or other direct costs) for all IDIQ tasks and status updates (work in progress, complete etc.) in the WIIMS.  The contractor is responsible for determining how to pull the information.  The information can be pulled from Maximo, pulled from the contractor’s accounting system, or input manually.  If pulled from Maximo, then Maximo must be updated daily.  
417.  The PWS states that the contractor’s business management system can be installed either on the Contractor’s servers or on Wallops servers.

a. Question: If the contractor decides to operate their accounting system on the Wallops servers, will contractor personnel be given access to perform vulnerability assessments and/or can NASA provide a SAS70 or equivalent report for their systems?


       Answer: The contractor will have a Government provided server for WIIMS which the contractor could decide to use for their accounting system.  The contractor has full system administration privileges for that system and is responsible for meeting all Government information technology security requirements for that system.  The requirements can be found in the RFP, Attachment J-15, Information Technology (IT) Security Applicable Documents List.
b. Question: How will the offeror’s data be segregated, firewalled, and/or protected from the other users that are on the Wallops servers?


      Answer:  See answer to a. above.  No other contractors will have full system administration privilege access to WIIMs. 
c. Question: What is the backup schedule and disaster recovery plan for the Wallops servers?

       Answer:  The contractor is responsible for a backup schedule and disaster recovery plan for the WIIMS server that is provided for contractor use.  
421.  Section L.24, Cost Volume, 2. Cost Proposal Format, (j) Material Items, Cost Forms - Exhibit 6.  The information provided in Attachment J-2, Appendix to Statement of Work provides data that is sufficient to develop the labor hours to perform the required services.  However, it does not provide sufficient data to identify the detailed Bill of Material.  In order to develop the detailed Bill of Material and provide the pricing required in Exhibit 6, a complete and current inventory of all facilities and equipment to be serviced under the Core Services is required. 


a. Question: Can the Government provide a current materials list for the facilities and equipment that require O&M material pricing in the Core Services by SOW?


     Answer: Please answer to question 420.b.
b. Question: Please provide the equipment manufacturer, model number, year of purchase, and equipment condition by building number.  


      Answer: For all equipment listed in CMMS, NASA has listed that equipment in the technical library located at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html.  
c. Question: Can a Criticality and/or Hierarchy List of equipment be provided?

      Answer: NASA does not maintain a list of this type.

426.  Reference questions 194 and 284 and draft RFP Section L.25.a

Question:  Does the answer provided to question 194 apply to past performance of significant subcontractors?

               Answer:  Yes.  The answer to Question 194 regarding Section L.25 (a), 1st paragraph, last sentence [which reads as follows: “Indicate which contracts are most related (similar in size, content and/or complexity) and how they are related to the proposed effort, as well as which contracts were performed by the division of your company (if applicable) that will perform the proposed contract/subcontract.”] applies to both Prime and significant subcontractors (see Section L.25 (a), 5th paragraph, last sentence).  Please note that RFP Section L.21 will be amended from:  25 pages from the Prime and each individual Significant Subcontractor, to:  not to exceed (NTE) 25 pages from the prime and NTE 25 pages from each significant subcontractor (e.g. NTE 25 pages for significant subcontractor #1 and NTE 25 pages for significant subcontract #2).  The amendment will be posted to http://prod.nais.nasa.gov/cgi-bin/eps/sol.cgi?acqid=146923#Other%2006 on or about September 21, 2012.

435.   The following question was received in reference to previously posted Question No. 41 which reads as follows:  

41.  Labor Unions:  

       Question:  Does the Labor Union for grounds maintenance and custodial services know their members are to be replaced by Ability One personnel through a directed subcontract under the WICC contractor?  If not, what is the Government plan for advising the union?  

        Answer:  Custodial services is under a collective bargaining agreement for which NISH/Ability One will be responsible.  Grounds maintenance falls under the Service Contract Act.  The Government is required to provide notification to the collective bargaining agent for the employees and the incumbent contractor under FAR 22.1010 -- Notification to Interested Parties Under Collective Bargaining Agreements.  The notification must include “the forthcoming successor contract and the applicable acquisition dates (issuance of solicitation, opening of bids, commencement of negotiations, award of contract, or start of performance, as the case may be).” 

New Question 435: 

a.
Question:  Do the current employees, covered by a CBA have a right of first refusal, when an AbiltyOne contractor becomes a prime? We understand that a minimum of 70% of AbilityOne employees must be “handicapped?”

               Answer:  AbilityOne and NISH have no role in what is defined in the CBA between the Union and the contractor.   Please see answer to Question 428.  
b.
Question:  Will the WICC prime proposers have the opportunity to examine the AbilityOne contracts prior to creating prime offers?

                           Answer:    No.  Please see answer to Question 428.

438.  The following question was received in reference to previously posted Question No. 45 which reads as follows: 

45.  Question:  In what situations would the WICC contractor be contracting with outside entities?  

        Answer:  It is currently anticipated that the WICC contractor will be required to establish an agreement with the Ability One vendor/vendors for custodial and grounds maintenance services.  Other contracting will be at the discretion of the contractor to meet contract requirements.

New Question 438: 

a.
Question:  What type of agreement will need to be established; two separate AbilityOne entities are likely to be in need of some type of agreement – custodial/housekeeping and grounds maintenance – correct? 
            Answer:  Please see answer to Question 428.  The prime will subcontract with AbilityOne Vendors for custodial and grounds maintenance services.

b.
Question:  Does the Govt assist the WICCS prime in negotiating these agreements?

             Answer:  Please see answer to Question 428.  The negotiated prices are contained in RFP, Attachment J-4 Appendices A and B.

c.
Question:  Must these agreements, align with a Govt/AbilityONE contract?

              Answer:  The Prime’s subcontract agreements for the AbilityOne services need to be priced using the prices already negotiated by the Government.
457.  The following question was received in reference to previously posted Question No. 101 which reads as follows:  

101.  a.  Question:  How is the process going with NISH?  

                Answer:  Details regarding NISH participation will be included in the DRFP.  

         b.  Question:  Will the prime be graded on the performance of the Ability One vendor?  

                 Answer:   Yes.
New Question 457:

a. Question:  Exactly what metrics will the Prime be graded on?  
               Answer:  No metrics are applicable to FFP task orders for AbilityOne services.  Instead the Prime’s performance will be assessed for meeting the schedule and technical requirements of the task order and will be reflected in the Prime’s annual Contractor Performance Assessment Reporting System (CPARS) evaluation.
b. Question:  Does the prime have a say in the quality assurance plan?

             Answer:  Yes, the Prime will be responsible for the development of the Quality Assurance Plan as part of their Mission Suitability Proposal.  See Section L.23 of the RFP posted to http://prod.nais.nasa.gov/cgi-bin/eps/sol.cgi?acqid=146923#Other%2006

c. Question:  Is the Prime “graded” on the performance of its AbilityOne subcontractors?

              Answer:  See answer to Question a. above.
464.  The following question was received in reference to previously posted Question No. 121 which reads as follows:  

121.  Reference SOW Section 1.2.81. Personnel Safety - The contractor shall provide trained and certified personnel for all conditions specified by OSHA and NASA Standards NASA Policies.

a.
 Question: How many portable fire extinguishers are there and where are they located?    

              Answer: There are 893 fire extinguishers at WFF.  Fire extinguishers are located in every building on site, including Navy buildings.   

b.
Question:  How many eye wash facilities are there and where are they located?

              Answer:  There are currently 66 eyewashes, 18 of those are portable and 17 eye wash/showers.  A spreadsheet with the locations is being uploaded to the technical library located at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html.

c.
Question: How many spill kits are onsite and the location?

              Answer: The number of spill kits is 35.  Spill kits are located at every active petroleum storage tank.  

d.
Question:  Are there any automated external defibrillators (AED) units onsite and where are they located? 

              Answer:  Yes there are AED units on site as follows:

         B-129: Fire Department: 3 AEDs for emergency response personnel

        X-15: Fire Department: 2 AEDs for emergency response personnel

        D-10 Base Gym: 1 AED that is alarmed

        Aircraft office (P-3 and NASA 8): 1 AED for each aircraft for emergencies

        Health Unit: 1 AED for responding to emergences

                   The AEDs are installation-accountable government property   
New Question 464: 

Question:  All systems current and calibrated – periodic checks and records are available for review if needed?

  Answer:  Yes, records are available for review.
467.  The following question was received in reference to previously posted Question No. 157 which reads as follows:  

157.    Question:  Do our facilities need improvement?

              Answer:  Yes, based on the most recent facilities condition assessment located in the technical library at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html 

New Question 467:  

Question:  Both NASA and USN facilities need improvement?

 Answer:  Yes, both NASA and NAVY facilities need improvement.  Please see the most recent facilities condition assessment posted to the technical library at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html which includes NASA and Navy buildings and assigns a facility condition index rating to each.

472.  The following question was received in reference to previously posted Question No. 178 which reads as follows:  

178.  Question:  Contractors’ Financial System – is this system turned over to WICC Contractor or does the Contractor bring their own system? 

           Answer:  See SOW Section 1.1.a.  The Contractor shall integrate their business management system(s) with the existing Wallops Institutional Integrated Management System (WIIMS) and the existing Computerized Maintenance Management System (CMMS) as part of an Integrated Management System (IMS) to assure accomplishment of contract technical, safety, schedule, and cost objectives.  The selected Contractor’s financial system will have to link to the WIIMS and MAXIMO to ensure costs are updated on a daily basis for IDIQ tasks. 

New Question 472:    

Question:  Are there any interface concerns; any certification and accreditation (C&A) issues related to linking and integrating a WICC’s prime systems with Government systems?

              Answer:   No; however, per  SOW 1.3.4, General Requirements for Contractor’s Information Systems and Document Management, for non-Government furnished information technology resources, the Contractor shall meet the requirements of the NASA Minimum Interoperability Software Suite and the Minimum Hardware Configurations standards that is referenced online at http://www.nasa.gov/offices/ocio/itsecurity/.  Office Automation generated products communicated electronically to and from Contractor owned or operated information systems must conform to minimum standards as required by the NASA CIO and defined in the executive notices issued by that office within 3 months of the issuance of such notices.  In addition, the daily operation of the Contractor’s information technology resources should, under no circumstances, impact the operation of NASA network resources beyond that which is caused by the transmission or receipt of (deliverable products) or administrative communications (email) which are compliant with the NASA Minimum Interoperability Software Suite Standard.    Please also see answer to Question 417.

480.  The following question was received in reference to previously posted Question No. 255 which reads as follows:  

255.  Proposal Schedule

Question: Does the Government intend to conduct a more in-depth site visit including entry into every facility followed by one-on-ones?  This procedure would be valuable to offerors in understanding the requirements to interface with other contractors, as well as responsibilities and work flow for facilities under this contract.

 Answer:  No, the government does not intend to conduct any additional site visits and believe we have written the contract requirements clearly.  However, if there are still any remaining questions on the requirements, please submit them to Therese.L.Patterson@nasa.gov.

New Question 480:    

Question:  Without an in-depth tour/visit – access to the site – only the incumbent holds critical knowledge and a decisive advantage.  Is the Govt taking steps to ensure a level “competitive” playing field?

               Answer:  Yes.  A site visit was conducted on April 18, 2012 in which any potential Offeror was invited to visit the facility.  During the visit, the potential Offerors were provided with a presentation including Wallops history, mission, tenants, review of the facility real estate, organization, launch range overview, Navy overview, Safety Office review, and Wallops Institutional Integrated Management System followed by a walking tour of some of the shops and a drive by tour of the entire Wallops Facility.        

489.  The following question was received in reference to previously posted Question No. 359 which reads as follows:  

359.
Reference: 146923-DRAFT-002-004 SOW Page 8, Paragraph 1.2.3b states, “…all personnel employed for work under the contract have adequate and appropriate qualifications including training, licenses, and certifications required by Federal, State, and local laws and regulations; NASA Policy Directives (NPD); NASA Procedural Requirements (NPR), Goddard Policy Directives (GPD), and Goddard Procedural Requirements (GPR) and the records shall indicate the current status of all required training.

Question: Will the government provide a list of all Government required training including Safety, Health, and Environmental training?

  Answer:  No, this is a performance based SOW.  The Offerors need to propose their required training based on their understanding of the SOW requirements.

New Question 489:  

Question:  More risks for the proposer – only the incumbent enjoys risk and cost realism – is this the intent of the Govt?

 Answer:  The Contractor is required to provide properly trained and if required certified personnel to provide work in the WICC II SOW.  Any Government specific training and/or certification requirements are identified in NASA and/or GSFC policy, the SOW or by task order.  
495.  The following question was received in reference to previously posted Question No. 413 which reads as follows:  

413.  Reference: G.21 Provisional Payment of Cost Performance Incentive Fee – Core Services. The Contractor may bill for provisional payment of the Cost Performance Incentive Fee pool up to the Cost Incentive Minimum specified in Clause B.2 Incentive Fee Pools, of the contract. Billings shall be no less than monthly based on the minimum incentive fee of TBP percentage applied against cost incurred up to the fee reserves specified in Clause I.155, Incentive Fee, paragraph (c), Withholding of Payment.

The final Cost Performance Incentive Fee pool earned determination will be made after total contract completion (base period plus any option periods exercised) by the Contracting Officer in accordance with Clause I.155, Incentive Fee, paragraph (e), Fee Payable. The Government will then pay the Contractor the difference between the final earned Cost Performance Incentive Fee amount and the cumulative provisional Cost Performance Incentive Fee pool payments. 

Question: This clause would delay the contractor receiving a portion of his earned fee for up to seven years. This delay would decrease the contractor’s cash flow and decrease the intended incentive for cost control. In addition, it would result in a “balloon” payment from the Government that might not be included in that year’s budget.  Would the Government consider paying this portion of the earned fee at the end of each evaluation period, consistent with the technical portion? 

 Answer:  In accordance with Clause G.21(b), the final Cost Performance Incentive Fee pool earned determination will be made after total contract completion (base period plus any option periods exercised) by the Contracting Officer in accordance with Clause I.155, Incentive Fee, paragraph (e), Fee Payable.  

Follow-Up Questions:


Number
Question

1

New Question 495:  
Question:  This situation creates a favorable advantage for an incumbent team; conversely, this drives “astronomical” bid, proposal and execution costs for a contract proposer.  Does the Govt see the inherent advantages of the incumbent?

                 Answer:  There is no incumbent advantage to the determination and payment of cost incentive fee.  Per FAR 16.405-1 and FAR 52.216-10, the final cost performance incentive fee pool earned/payable determination cannot be made until after contract completion based a pre-established formula and the relationship of the final “Total Allowable Cost” to the contract’s negotiated “Total Target Cost.”  The final “total allowable cost” cannot be determined until the final indirect cost rate covering the year of physical completion of the contract has established by DCAA.                                                                                                                               
496.  Question:  Will an OCI Mitigation Plan be required, as part of the proposal?

Answer:  Yes, see answer to Question 455.b.
497.  Question:  Will a Risk Mitigation Plan be required, as part of the proposal?

Answer:  No Risk Mitigation Plan will be required with the proposal.
499.   Reference: Section M of RFP, Paragraph 2, Evaluation Findings (Specifically “Strengths & Significant Strengths”)

Your reference evaluation has “Strength” and “Significant strength” defined in part as a proposal area that “contributes significantly towards exceeding the contract requirements in a manner that provided additional value to the Government.”

a. Question:  What is the basis the Government will use to evaluate a contractor exceeding contract performance? 

               Answer:  The process for the Government is to evaluate the proposal and determine whether it meets, exceeds or does not meet the requirements of the Statement of Work (SOW).  The standard for contract performance is the SOW.  The Government will evaluate each proposal and will give strengths and significant strengths as applicable to each proposal.  In accordance with Section M.3 a Strength (not in FAR/NFS) is a proposal area that enhances the potential for successful performance or contributes toward exceeding the contract requirements in a manner that provides additional value to the government (this could be associated with a process, technical approach, materials, facilities, etc.).  A Significant Strength (not in FAR/NFS) is a proposal area that greatly enhances the potential for successful performance or contributes significantly toward exceeding the contract requirements in a manner that provides additional value to the government.    

b. Question:  Do you evaluate the extra expenses of exceeding contract performance?

              Answer:   Yes.  Per FAR 15.3, the Government performs a trade-off analysis for a best-value selection.

c. Question:  How much at the expense of a lower cost? 

   Answer:   Please see answer to Question b. above.
d. Question:  Shouldn’t the evaluation be based on meeting the minimal requirements at the lowest possible cost?

   Answer:  No.  This is not a technically acceptable lowest cost procurement.  See answer to b. above.
501.  Reference: Cost Proposal Format – Core, (h) Basis of Estimate (BOE) for each SOW WBS Level 3

a. Question:  Many elements of each SOW WBS Level 3 can be the same BOE. Will you require contractors to repeat the same BOE for each Level 3 per reference requirement?

         Answer:  No.  Offerors do not need to repeat identical estimating information in multiple Level 3 BOEs.  However, it is the responsibility of the Offeror to provide clear cross-referencing for identical information. 
b. Question:   Why can’t we just explain the elements that apply to each Level 3 SOW WBS and then discuss the BOE elements that are different at the WBS Level 3?

        Answer:   See answer to Question a. above.

502.  Reference: Cost Proposal Format – Core, (h) Basis of Estimate

Question: Your definitions per reference indicate Program Management as an ODC cost and would be shown on Exhibit 4 “Summary of Recurring Other Direct Cost.” Is this an indication that the Government considers Program Management as an ODC not an indirect or overhead cost? Please Clarify.

          Answer:  No.  The words “Program Management” used for Exhibit 4 was just an example of possible recurring ODCs indicated by the (e.g...).  An Offeror proposes the costs based on their approved estimating or accounting procedure and determines where Program Management cost belongs.  See (h) BASIS OF ESTIMATES (BOE) AT WBS LEVEL 3, 2nd paragraph, 3rd bullet.
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